
From: Renee Wong
To: Nathan Brostrom; Dwaine Duckett; "UCI Meredith Michaels"; "UCSF Angela M. Hawkins"; Jagdeep Bachher;

"CUCEA W. Douglas Morgan"; "CUCRA Lee Duffus"; "UCSD Ross Starr"; "UCLA Shane White"; "UCLA Monica
Martinez"; "UCB Paul Brooks"

Cc: CUCEA Roger Anderson; UCI Deborah H McWilliams; UCD James Chalfant; Jane Schnorrenberg; Melanie
McNair; "Lisa Grigaitis"; "Hill, Cathy"; Elizabeth Agbayani; Gary Schlimgen; Robert Semple

Subject: FW: Letter from the UCRS Advisory Board on Resolving the Deficit in UCRP
Date: Monday, July 28, 2014 10:29:44 AM
Attachments: UCRS Advisory Board - Letter on Resolving the Deficit in UCRP -V4.pdf

UCRP Funding Projections - UCRSAB mtg 2-28-14.pdf

THIS MESSAGE IS BEING SENT ON BEHALF OF ROBERT SEMPLE
 
MEMBERS OF THE UCRS ADVISORY BOARD:
 
At the request of the Chair White, I am distributing UCOP Administration’s response to the
Board’s letter to President Napolitano regarding funding for UCRP.
 
Thank you.
 
Robert
 
Robert Semple | Principal Analyst| University of California Office of the President | Pension &
Retirement Programs | ph.510.987.0598 | Robert.Semple@ucop.edu
 
 

From: President [mailto:President@ucop.edu] 
Sent: Friday, July 25, 2014 2:06 PM
To: White, Shane
Cc: President; Dwaine Duckett
Subject: FW: Letter from the UCRS Advisory Board on Resolving the Deficit in UCRP
 
Dear Professor White:
 
Thank you for your email of June 26 to President Janet Napolitano regarding
employer and employee contributions to the University of California Retirement
System (UCRS).  The President has asked me to respond on her behalf, and I am
pleased to do so.  Please know at the outset how highly the President and I value
your attention and thoughtfulness in your role as Chair of the UCRS Advisory
Board and also how much we appreciate the Board’s important work. 
 
I agree that the University has made tremendous progress over the past five
years to ensure the long-term viability of UCRP.  Contributions have resumed
and have incrementally increased to a combined 22 percent (8 percent employee,
14 percent UC) of pay beginning this fiscal year, despite the lack of adequate
State support.  Clearly, increasing contributions in this manner demonstrates
that our pension plan is a top institutional priority.  As you note in your message,
the increased contributions have placed tremendous pressure on campus and
medical center operating budgets at a time of diminished levels of State funding. 
As you know, there has also been an impact on our employees’ take-home pay, but
I am happy to say that regular salary increases for faculty and policy-covered
staff have now been built into the annual Regents’ and local budgets. 
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Prof. Shane N White 
Chair, UC Retirement System Advisory Board 
June 20, 2014 


 
 


President Janet Napolitano 
Office of the President 
University of California 
 
Dear President Napolitano: 
 
The University of California Retirement System Advisory Board is a representative body, 
established by the standing orders of the Regents, focused on the University of California 
Retirement System, including the University of California Retirement Plan (UCRP) and 
voluntary and compulsory defined contribution plans [403(b), 457(b), DC plan, CAP].  The 
Board is constituted of: your nominees, senior administrators; the Chief Investment Officer; the 
Chair of the Council of UC Emeriti Associations;  the Chair of the Council of UC Retiree 
Associations; non-Senate employee-elected representatives; and Academic Senate 
representatives. The Board does not issue recommendations, but may communicate information 
directly to you.   
 
The Board has focused significant attention on the condition of UCRP fund and is pleased to 
note that significant progress has been made over the last five years, a period of time marked by 
tremendous fiscal uncertainty.  From a zero contribution, the contribution level is now reaching 
22%.  We continue to closely monitor funding and are pleased to see that there seems to be a 
confluence of direction and alignment.  As always, the Board recognizes the inherent tensions 
and trades-off. 
 
The Board wishes to bring the following matters to your attention.  The UCRP trust fund is in 
deficit by approximately $11.7 billion, approximately 24% of required funding on an actuarial 
basis, or 21% on market value.  At current contribution levels, the dollar deficit is projected to 
grow substantially in the coming decade.  The University is currently in debt to UCRP by this 
amount, in effect, and borrowing at 7.5% to finance that debt.  This liability is inescapable, and it 
grows at 7.5% per year, due to foregone earnings, and more when contributions lag. Closing 
UCRP today would not solve or decrease the deficit; the liability would still exist. This unfunded 
liability means that UCRP is currently forgoing annual earnings of $900 million, more as the 
liability continues to grow and compound. This represents an enormous long-term drain on 
University resources. The deficit was largely created by a 20-year contribution holiday. Although 
current Regental Funding Policy intends the full Annual Required Contribution (ARC) to be 
made to UCRP every year (see link below), this has not yet occurred.  
(http://regents.universityofcalifornia.edu/governance/policies/5601.html) 
 


University of California 
 


UCRS Advisory Board 
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Actuarial projections presented to the Board show that two additional years of contributions at 
ARC levels, now, would dramatically reduce UCRP’s unfunded liability (see the attachment to 
agenda item E in the following link). (http://ucnet.universityofcalifornia.edu/compensation-and-
benefits/retirement-benefits/ucrsab/docs/20140228-agenda-items.pdf). The Board notes that 
borrowing to undertake these contributions does not represent an increase in University 
indebtedness, but rearranges it from a deficit in UCRP to an obligation to the lending source 
(which may be internal to the University).  Avoiding delay in contributions significantly reduces 
future UCRP deficits as contributions earn compound returns, and reduces future required 
contributions from UC general funds. 
 
Following consideration of the 2010 Post-Employment Benefits Task Force Report, the Regents 
authorized a plan to return to full funding, aiming to reach a modified ARC by 2011, and full 
ARC by 2018, and full funding in 30 years (see link below). 
(http://regents.universityofcalifornia.edu/minutes/2010/joint12.pdf). That plan was designed to 
balance the competing needs of current campus operations and long-term fiscal rectitude. That 
plan included 2 components. The first was a ramp up in employee contributions to 8% of payroll 
and a ramp up in employer contributions to 18% of payroll. The second component authorized 
use of internal or external borrowing at the discretion of the President. To date, modified ARC 
has  been contributed only in 2 out of 4 years since the plan was approved; those when internal 
borrowing from the Short Term Investment Pool (STIP) was utilized. The unfunded liability has 
continued to grow and compound. 
 
Raising contribution levels to meet modified and full ARC on the established Regental timeline 
may impact the University in the following dimensions:  


(1) Increases in general fund contributions are, in effect, matched two-for-one by ancillary 
funding contributions, because contributions to UCRP come approximately 34% from University 
general funds and 66% from ancillary funding (Medical Centers, Housing and Food Services, 
Contracts and Grants) at the same proportions of payroll. UCRP claims on general funds are 
thereby reduced.  


(2) Reduction in the unfunded liability can improve the University’s credit rating, to increase 
its debt capacity, and to decrease the cost of borrowing for other purposes including capital 
projects.  


(3) Delay in the ramp up will cause the dollar amount of the unfunded liability to grow 
considerably over coming decades (see the attachment to agenda item E in the link below). 
(http://ucnet.universityofcalifornia.edu/compensation-and-benefits/retirement-
benefits/ucrsab/docs/20140228-agenda-items.pdf).This exposes the University to both substantial 
financial and political risk.  


(4) The time value of contributions means that delay in returning to ARC, by foregoing the 
investment return on contributions, substantially increases the University’s long-term operating 
costs for decades to come, diverting funds from supporting students and the core mission, to 
paying sustained high levels of employer contributions.  The reason for this is that there are only 
two sources of funding for pensions: either contributions or the earnings on those contributions.  
Foregoing earnings now means contributing much more in the future. 
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The ramp-up in employee contributions has decreased employee total remuneration at a time 
when some employee groups already lagged their peer comparators. Moreover, the ramp-up in 
employer contributions has placed tremendous pressure on campus operating budgets at a time of 
diminished levels of state funding. These pressures may be even more acute in areas that are 
essentially self-funded, such as the hospitals or those funded by external contracts and grants. 
Proposals to borrow to fund UCRP have been made by the Academic Senate (see link below) 
(http://senate.universityofcalifornia.edu/reports/BJ2NB_UCRPFunding.pdf) and by the EVP for 
Business Operations; the latter proposal will be presented at the upcoming July Regents’ 
meeting. These proposals seek to ensure the fiscal stability of UCRP and may provide relief for 
campus operating budgets. 
 
Thank you for reviewing this material.  This correspondence was circulated to Board Members 
prior to the Board’s June 20, 2014 meeting and discussed at the meeting; it reflects the consensus 
view of the Members. I would be more than happy to discuss the contents of this letter with you, 
at your convenience. 
 
Yours truly, 


 
Shane N White, Chair of UCRSAB   
 
 
Cc: UCRS Advisory Board Members (listed below) 
 Professor Shane White, UCLA (Chair) 
 Vice Chancellor Meredith Michaels, UCI (Vice Chair) 
 Executive Vice President Nathan Brostrom, UCOP 
 Vice President Dwaine Duckett, UCOP 
 Chief Investment Officer Jagdeep Sing Bachher, UCOP 
 Associate Vice Chancellor Angela Hawkins, UCSF 
 CUCEA Chair W. Douglas Morgan 
 CUCRA Chair Lee Duffus 
 Professor Ross Starr, UCSD 
 Spectroscopist Paul Brooks, UCB 


Administrative Clinical Care Partner Monica Martinez, UCLA 
   
 



http://senate.universityofcalifornia.edu/reports/BJ2NB_UCRPFunding.pdf
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Modeling of Various Hypothetical Maximum
Employer Contribution Rates


Rates modeled are “actual” employer contribution rates and not the 
total Funding Policy Contribution rates


– Employer rates are in addition to member contributions


Maximum employer contribution rate scenarios modeled:
 14%, 15%, 16% and 18% of covered payroll 


– Total of employer and member contribution rates are assumed to be no greater 
than the total Funding Policy Contribution rate for any year in the projection


– Contribution rates are modeled on the next slide with the corresponding funded 
ratios and UAAL amounts shown on the two slides after that, respectively


Projection results may change significantly from year to year 
depending on actual experience, including future market returns


Projections based on plan terms in effect as of July 1, 2013
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Plan Year Beginning July 1, 


University of California Retirement Plan
Comparison of Various Hypothetical


Maximum Employer Contribution Rate Schedules


18% Max 16% Max 15% Max 14% Max


Campus and Medical Center Segment Only
Assumes market value return of 7.5% per year beginning July 1, 2013


These rates are in addition to any member contributions, which 
increase to 8.0% for the 1976 Tier starting July 1, 2014
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Plan Year Beginning July 1, 


University of California Retirement Plan
Funded Ratio Based on Various Hypothetical 


Maximum Employer Contribution Rate Schedules


18% Max 16% Max 15% Max 14% Max


Campus and Medical Center Segment Only
Assumes market value return of 7.5% per year 
beginning July 1, 2013


July 1, 2013 Unfunded 
Actuarial Accrued Liability 
(UAAL) = $12 Billion; 
Projected UAALs at July 1, 
2042 shown in text boxes 
on right


No UAAL


UAAL = 
$2 Billion


UAAL = 
$9 Billion


UAAL = 
$20 Billion
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Plan Year Beginning July 1, 


University of California Retirement Plan
UAAL Based on Various Hypothetical 


Maximum Employer Contribution Rate Schedules


18% Max 16% Max 15% Max 14% Max


Campus and Medical Center Segment Only
Assumes market value return of 7.5% per year 
beginning July 1, 2013


July 1, 2013 Funded Ratio (Actuarial 
Value Basis) = 76%; 
Projected Funded Ratios at July 1, 2042 
shown in text boxes on right


Funded 
Ratio = 87%


Funded 
Ratio = 99%


Funded 
Ratio = 94%


Funded 
Ratio = 101%







Assumptions and Methods Used in Projections


 Unless otherwise noted, the projections were made using generally accepted 
actuarial practices and are based on the July 1, 2013 actuarial valuation results, 
including the participant data and actuarial assumptions on which that valuation was 
based. Here is a summary of some of the important assumptions used in the 
projection.
 Campus and medical center segment only
 7.50% market value return per year starting July 1, 2013
 Reflects new pension tier starting July 1, 2013 (along with later retirement rate 


assumptions for members in this tier)
– Projections based on plan terms in effect as of July 1, 2013


 Member rate for most 1976 Tier members is 6.5% for 2013/2014 and 8.0% for 
2014/2015 (less $19 per month) and stays at that level throughout the projection


 Approved/projected employer rate is as shown in the modeling
 Active member population has been assumed to remain constant in all future 


years
 Demographics for future new entrants are assumed to be the same as those for 


members hired during the two years prior to July 1, 2013
5







Other Information


 Projections, by their nature, are not a guarantee of future results. The modeling 
projections are intended to serve as illustrations of future financial outcomes that are 
based on the information available to us at the time the modeling is undertaken and 
completed, and the agreed-upon assumptions and methodologies described herein. 
Emerging results may differ significantly if the actual experience proves to be 
different from these assumptions or if alternative methodologies are used. Actual 
experience may differ due to such variables as demographic experience, the 
economy, stock market performance and the regulatory environment.


 All calculations were completed under the supervision of John Monroe, ASA, MAAA, 
Enrolled Actuary who is a member of the American Academy of Actuaries and 
meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render 
the actuarial opinion herein.
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Disclaimer


These contribution scenarios were requested by TFIR and  
not proposed by Segal


The hypothetical modeling that follows was authorized by 
UCOP, at the request of TFIR


Segal remains a neutral party to these proposals


Projections based on plan terms in effect as of July 1, 2013


8







Modeling of Various Hypothetical
Employer Contribution Rates


Rates modeled are those requested by TFIR
 Employer rates shown are in addition to member contributions


Contribution rate scenarios modeled:
 Total Funding Policy Contribution (“ARC”) for all years 


 Modified ARC (Normal Cost plus 7.5% Interest on UAAL) for all years
 ARC for two years followed by either 14%, 16% or 18% of covered payroll 


maximum employer contribution rate thereafter


Total of employer and member contribution rates are assumed 
to be no greater than the total Funding Policy Contribution 
(“ARC”) rate for any year in the projection


Contribution rates are modeled on slide 11 with the 
corresponding funded ratios and UAAL amounts shown on the 
two slides after that, respectively
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Modeling of Various Hypothetical
Employer Contribution Rates


Hypothetical “borrowing” amounts to get to ARC or Modified 
ARC during first two years are as follows:


Projection results may change significantly from year to year 
depending on actual experience, including future market 
returns


10


$ in Billions 2013/2014 2014/2015


ARC $0.9 $0.8
Modified ARC $0.7 $0.6
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Plan Year Beginning July 1, 


University of California Retirement Plan
Comparison of Hypothetical Employer Contributions 


ARC for all years Modified ARC for all Years ARC Two Years; 14% Max Thereafter
ARC Two Years; 16% Max Thereafter ARC Two Years; 18% Max Thereafter


Campus and Medical Center Segment Only
Assumes market value return of 7.5% per year beginning 
July 1, 2013


These rates are in addition to member contributions,
which increase to 8.0% for the 1976 Tier starting July 1, 2014
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Plan Year Beginning July 1, 


University of California Retirement Plan
Funded Ratio Based on Various Hypothetical Employer Contributions


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


July 1, 2013 Unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability (UAAL) = $12 Billion; 
Projected UAALs at July 1, 2042 shown 
in text boxes on right


UAAL = 
$7 Billion


No UAAL


UAAL = 
$8 Billion
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Note:  UAAL under the Modified ARC Scenario decreases over time due to a combination of 
gains being recognized in early years under the asset smoothing method and the one-year 
delay between the valuation date and the date the rates would be effective.
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Plan Year Beginning July 1, 


University of California Retirement Plan
UAAL Based on Various Hypothetical Employer Contributions


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
Ratio = 95%


Funded 
Ratio = 96%


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
 Reflects 2013 Tier starting July 1, 2013 (along with later retirement rate 


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
 Active member population headcount has been assumed to remain constant in all 


future years
 Demographics for future new entrants are assumed to be the same as those for 


members hired during the two years prior to July 1, 2013
14







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
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Focusing on our retirement system specifically, it has been strengthened in other
ways as well.  The Regents approved the 2013 tier of pension benefits and
authorized two successive years of borrowing from our short-term liquidity pool
and external sources to better leverage the retirement system.  By borrowing over
$2 billion from internal and external sources at anticipated lower interest and
placing the proceeds in UCRP with projected higher earning assets, the
University improved our funding status and put the retirement system on a
stronger path toward full funding.  This strategy has been so successful that an
item for additional borrowing was brought to The Regents this week.  President
Napolitano and I appreciate both the Advisory Board’s and the Academic Senate’s
review of the merits of additional borrowing to help ensure of the fiscal stability of
the UCRP, and this was noted at The Regents’ meeting this week.  
 
The combination of these efforts has put the University’s retirement plan on a
path toward solid footing both for current employees and for future generations of
UC faculty and staff.  With these measures, combined with an investment return
that will exceed expectations for FY 2013-14, I am pleased to note that the
retirement plan is expected to be fully funded sooner than earlier projections
estimated.  We believe we have been sound fiscal stewards in developing
measures that preserve the strength of the retirement system, while still meeting
the teaching and research needs of our campuses.
 
Again, the President and I deeply appreciate your leadership on the UCRS
Advisory Board, and the Board’s attention to these important issues.  Please be
assured that the strength of UCRS will continue to be a high priority for us.
 
Sincerely,
 
Nathan Brostrom
Executive Vice President—Business Operations
University of California Office of the President
 
cc:        President Napolitano
            Vice President Duckett
                       
 
 

From: White, Shane [mailto:snwhite@dentistry.ucla.edu] 
Sent: Thursday, June 26, 2014 7:05 PM
To: President
Subject: Letter from the UCRS Advisory Board on Resolving the Deficit in UCRP
 
Dear President Napolitano, I am transmitting a letter to you on behalf of the UCRS Advisory Board.
The letter contains several links to related documents. For your convenience, the second one of
these linked documents, UCRP Funding Projections, is also attached to this note, because is it
buried within a larger pdf of the linked UCRS Advisory Board Agenda (the attachment to agenda
item E). Please do not hesitate to contact me if you would like to discuss the contents of the letter,

mailto:snwhite@dentistry.ucla.edu


or if I can provide any clarification or context. Sincerely, Shane N. White Chair UCRS Advisory Board
 


